
 
Land Use and Long  
Range Planning 
5800 Shier Rings Road 
Dublin, Ohio 43016 

phone  614.410.4600 
fax      614.410.4747 

www.dublinohiousa.gov 

ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEW TEAM 
 

MEETING MINUTES 
 

DECEMBER 6, 2012 
 
Attendees 
Steve Langworthy, ART Chair/Director of Land Use and Long Range Planning; Gary Gunderman, Planning 
Manager; Rachel Ray, Planner II; Barb Cox, Engineering Manager; Alan Woo, Fire Chief; Jeff Tyler, 
Director of Building Standards; Colleen Gilger, Economic Development Manager; Jennifer Rauch, Planner 
II; Laura Ball, Landscape Architect; Fred Hahn, Director of Parks and Open Space; Jonathan Lee, 
Planning Assistant; Jordan Fromm, Planning Assistant and Ebony Mills, Office Assistant II. 
 
Introduction 
 

1. 12-086MPR – BSC Commercial District – Shoppes at River Ridge – Posh! Nail 
Company– Signs – 4465 West Dublin-Granville Road 
 

Rachel Ray said this is a request to install a 30-square-foot internally illuminated wall sign in accordance 
with Zoning Code Section 153.065(H) for a personal services facility (nail salon) in the Shoppes at River 
Ridge shopping center. She said the proposed sign meets the Bridge Street Sign Code; the sign will 
contain black reverse-lit channel letters with blue and white halo lighting.  She said Planning with work 
with the applicant on selecting a more complimentary font combination and the exclamation point looks 
like the letter “l.”   
 
Barb Cox said the tenant address is listed differently on several of the application materials. She stated 
that Engineering had previously designated that space as 4437 West Dublin-Granville Road, and asked 
that the applicant verify or correct the tenant address.  
 
Jeff Tyler said to keep in mind that if a thinner font is used, that could make the lettering more difficult to 
fabricate, although he agreed that a more complimentary combination should be used.   
 
Determinations 
 

2. 12-085ARB-MPR – BSC Historic Core District – Trovare Home Sign – 113 South High 
Street  
 

Jonathan Lee said this is a request to install a seven-square-foot wall sign for a new furniture store 
located on the west side of South High Street approximately 60 feet south of the intersection with Pinney 
Hill Lane in the BSC Historic Core District. He said this Minor Project Review application is proposed in 



Administrative Review Team Meeting Minutes 
Thursday, December 6, 2012 

Page 2 of 5 
 
accordance with Zoning Code Section 153.066(G) and under the review standards of Zoning Code Section 
153.170 and the Historic Dublin Design Guidelines. He said the proposed sign will occupy the same 
location as the existing sign and will utilize the existing brackets.  He said the sign will consist of black 
wood with gold lettering. Mr. Lee said the approval is recommended with the following two conditions: 
 

1) That the applicant submits a scaled sign elevation drawing demonstrating the proposed font and 
edge treatment of the proposed sign prior to the Architectural Review Board review; and 

2) That the applicant submits paint samples or a colored sign elevation showing the proposed sign 
colors prior to the Architectural Review Board review. 

 
Mr. Lee asked the applicant and ART members if they had any questions or concerns regarding the 
recommended conditions. 
 
Steve Langworthy said he is not certain how the lettering will work, which is why it was made a 
condition. 
 
Jeff Tyler asked what the requirements will be for a sign permit. 
 
Rachel Ray said the application will be required to provide all of the sign details and scaled plans. 
 
Diane Bolone, Trovare Home, said she would like to propose changing the sign color from black to a dark 
green. 
 
Ms. Ray said if the ART members agreed with the change, a condition could be added. 
 
Mr. Langworthy confirmed that Ms. Bolone agreed to the three conditions.  He confirmed that the 
Administrative Review Team members had no further comments on this application and stated that this 
request for Minor Project Review had been approved with three conditions: 
 

1) That the applicant submits a scaled sign elevation drawing demonstrating the proposed font and 
edge treatment of the proposed sign prior to the Architectural Review Board review; and 

2) That the applicant submits paint samples or a colored sign elevation showing the proposed sign 
colors prior to the Architectural Review Board review; and 

3) That the applicant changes the original proposed sign color from black to dark green. 
 
 
 

3. 12-068ARB-MPR – BSC Historic Core District – The Scioto Room – Site and 
Architectural Modifications and Parking Plan – 38 West Bridge Street  
 

Jennifer Rauch said this is a request for a new eating and drinking facility located at 38 West Bridge 
Street in the BSC Historic Core District including architectural modifications to an Existing Structure. She 
said the request also includes improvements to the existing parking lot, a new ground sign, a pocket 
plaza, and approval of a parking plan. She said this Minor Project Review application is proposed in 
accordance with Zoning Code Section 153.066(G) and under the review standards of Zoning Code Section 
153.170 and the Historic Dublin Design Guidelines.   
 
Ms. Rauch explained that the applicant is proposing to convert an existing office into a banquet facility.  
She said the applicant is proposing minor exterior modifications to the façade, and a new enclosure to 
the rear of the building for storage.  She said modifications are proposed to the parking lot to address 
parking requirements for a change in use.  
 



Administrative Review Team Meeting Minutes 
Thursday, December 6, 2012 

Page 3 of 5 
 
Ms. Rauch said two new signs are proposed; one wall sign located on the south elevation at the main 
entrance and one ground sign integrated into the proposed stone wall located along West Bridge Street.  
She said the letters will be reverse channel with halo lighting as well as a copper patina element with 
white background lighting.  
 
Ms. Rauch said there is currently two-way driveway circulation on site, which the applicant is proposing to 
change to a one-way configuration with existing onto West Bridge Street.  She said there are concerns 
that the new entrance will create confusion among drivers on Bridge Street.  She said the applicant is 
proposing to eliminate all four parking spaces on the adjacent parcel to the north to maintain two-way 
circulation along that drive aisle. She described the parking requirements for the site and the applicant’s 
proposed parking plan.  
 
Ms. Rauch stated that the proposed Administrative Review Team recommendation to the Architectural 
Review Board is disapproval of this Minor Project Review and Parking Plan application because of site 
circulation issues and the lack of available parking as the basis for their recommendation. She said that 
Planning has a recommendation of approval for the Administrative Departure to permit pendant lighting 
under the existing canopy in lieu of the required recessed lighting. 
 
Steve Langworthy inquired if the applicant or Administrative Review Team members would like to 
comment on the application. 
 
Barb Cox reiterated that a grease interceptor for plumbing will need to be provided, which will be 
reviewed at building permitting. She stated that she wanted to make sure that the applicant understood 
that a grease trap would be required.  
 
Jeff Tyler said that a handicap-accessible egress still had not been provided. 
 
Tim Bass, the applicant and representative of the property owner, said a grease interceptor will be 
provided on the property and will be included on the building permitting documents, and the required 
egress will be addressed during the permitting process as well.   
 
Mr. Bass said with respect to the parking plan, all individuals reserving the facility for events will be 
required to sign a contract stating that all vehicles arriving for the event will be required to use the valet, 
ParkOps, who can accommodate up to 110 cars. He said the site’s 17 spaces will be used by the valet for 
staging; under a worst case scenario, the valet can park 110 cars. He said Mr. Liu will work with the 
school to ensure that events are not scheduled concurrently with school events as an effort to avoid 
those parking problems; he also has an agreement with the veterinarian next door to use his parking 
spaces when necessary. 
 
Mr. Langworthy said that he would like to talk about the specific review criteria for the demonstration of 
parking need in Zoning Code Section 153.065(B)(2)(b)6. He read the first criterion regarding the land use 
and development character of the area to be served by the parking facility.  
 
Ms. Rauch said there is a concern about the impact of the new facility during peak hours. 
 
Mr. Langworthy presented the Darby Street and Indian Run parking lot usage graphs to illustrate the high 
occupancies and lengths of stay in the Darby Street lot throughout the day, including lunch time, and 
particularly so in the evenings.  
 
Mr. Tyler said there is currently an agreement requiring Mezzo to use the valet services if they decided to 
open during lunch, which would compound the parking conflict if the Scioto Room were to schedule a 
function during lunch.  He referred to the parking spaces on the parking plan designated for potential 



Administrative Review Team Meeting Minutes 
Thursday, December 6, 2012 

Page 4 of 5 
 
employee parking at the Dublin Community Church and stated that he would like to get something from 
the church showing which spaces they have offered Mr. Liu to ensure the spaces are not being over 
committed, since the City is currently paying for the use of 30 parking spaces in the church lot from 
7:00am to 6:00pm. He said if employees are being required to park at the church he would like 
something in writing and would like to see the agreement Mr. Liu has with the veterinarian. 
 
Mr. Bass said the agreement with the veterinarian is verbal. He stated that the numbers used in the 
parking plan are very conservative numbers, and he does not feel that it is likely that more than 35 or so 
vehicles will be required for any given event.   
 
Mr. Langworthy said it is not about the numbers but about how it works out in reality. 
 
Mr. Langworthy referred to the second criterion relating to the availability of other publicly available 
parking in the area. He said the Darby lot is at 100% capacity on some evenings, the library lot does not 
permit parking, and the only other nearby lot not at 100% capacity is the Indian Run lot. 
 
Fred Hahn asked what will be put in place to ensure employees will not park in the Darby Street lot.  Ms. 
Rauch noted that it is not likely that employees will be required to move their cars in the middle of a 
shift. Mr. Tyler said there is a potential for employees to be parked in a space for over eight hours.   
 
Mr. Bass said only one event will be held per day, unless it’s an early morning and a later evening event, 
and employees will not stay for extended amounts of time.  
 
Mr. Langworthy said it is also possible that not all attendees will want to valet and may park in other lots 
anyway.   
 
Mr. Bass said that will be address through the facility use contract.  Mr. Langworthy said he is not sure 
how this will be enforced. 
 
Ms. Rauch stressed to the applicant that if any amendments to the parking plan are proposed, they will 
need to be submitted by Tuesday.  
 
Colleen Gilger pointed out that currently, many patrons of the existing J. Liu restaurant are parking in the 
38 West Bridge Street parking lot now, so there will be a ripple effect if these spaces are no longer 
available to J. Liu patrons. She said that should be factored into the parking plan as well. 
 
Mr. Langworthy said the parking lot may need to be closed off to prevent non-valet vehicles from parking 
in the spaces. 
 
Mr. Tyler suggested the applicant really think through the site’s operations to make sure that the parking 
plan is as thorough as possible.  
 
Mr. Langworthy asked if the Administrative Review Team members had any further questions or concerns 
regarding this proposal. [There were none.] He explained the Administrative Review Team would forward 
a recommendation of disapproval as submitted to the Architectural Review Board of this Minor Project 
Review application and that this proposal would be reviewed by the Architectural Review Board on 
December 19, 2012. 
 
Administrative 
 
Mr. Langworthy asked Ms. Ray to provide a brief update regarding potential upcoming applications. Mr. 
Langworthy asked if there were any changes to the November 29, 2012 meeting minutes. (No changes 
requested.) Mr. Langworthy accepted the minutes into record as presented. 



Administrative Review Team Meeting Minutes 
Thursday, December 6, 2012 

Page 5 of 5 
 
 
Steve Langworthy confirmed there were no further items of discussion and adjourned the meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


